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RESPONDENTS: 

COMPLAINANTS: 

RESPONDENTS: 

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

MUR 7001 
COMPLAINT DATE: 1/20/2016 
NOTIFICATION DATE: 1/22/2016 
RESPONSE DATE: 4/04/2016 
ACTIVATION DATE: 7/20/2017 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS: 8/9/2018 - 11/9/2018' 
ELECTION CYCLE: 2012 

Craig McDonald, Texans for Public Justice 

Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley S. Knippa in his official 
capacity as treasurer 

Senator Rafael Edward "Ted" Cruz 

MUR 7002 
COMPLAINT DATE: 1/22/2016 
NOTIFICATION DATE: 2/4/2016 
RESPONSE DATES: 4/04/2016, 9/15/2017 
ACTIVATION DATE: 7/20/2017 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS: 6/12/2018—11/9/2018 
ELECTION CYCLE: 2012 

Lawrence M. Noble, Campaign Legal Center 
Fred Wertheimer, Democracy 21 

Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley S. Knippa in his official 
capacity as treasurer 

Senator Rafael Edward "Ted" Cruz 
Heidi Cruz^ 

' The Committee and Ted Cruz each tolled the statute of limitations for 390 days while the Commission's 
audit of the Committee's 2012 election cycle activities concluded. 

^ Due to an administrative oversight, Heidi Cruz was not notified of the MUR 7002 complaint. The matter 
was activated shortly after the audit was completed, the oversight was identified, and Heidi Cruz was notified of the 
complaint. Heidi Cruz then provided a 30-day tolling agreement in exchange for additional time to reply to the 
notification, which extended the statute of limitations for her potential violation to October 1,2017. 
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22 COMPLAINANT: 

RESPONDENTS: 

SOURCE: 

RESPONDENTS: 

MUR7003 
COMPLAINT DATE: 1/22/2016 
NOTIFICATION DATE: 2/1/2016 
RESPONSE DATE: 4/04/2016 
ACTIVATION DATE: 7/20/2017 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS: 8/9/2018—11/9/2018 
ELECTION CYCLE: 2012 

Steven E. Schonberg 

Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley S. Knippa in his official 
capacity as treasurer 

Senator Rafael Edward "Ted" Cruz 

MUR 7009 
COMPLAINT DATE: 2/08/2016 
NOTIFICATION DATE: 2/16/2016 
RESPONSE DATE: 12/20/2016 
ACTIVATION DATE: 7/20/2017 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS: 8/9/2018—11/9/2018 
ELECTION CYCLE: 2012 

Charles Swofford 

Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley S. Knippa in his official 
capacity as treasurer 

Senator Rafael Edward "Ted" Cruz 

RAD REFERRAL 16L-09 
DATE REFERRED: 6/2/2016 
NOTIFICATION DATE: 6/7/2016 
RESPONSE DATE; 12/20/2016 
ACTIVATION DATE: 7/20/2017 

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS: 8/9/2018—11/9/2018 
ELECTION CYCLE: 2012 

Internally Generated 

Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley S. Knippa in his 
official capacity as treasurer 

40 
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1 RELEVANT STATUTES 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) 
2 AND REGULATIONS: 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(A), (f) 
3 11C.F.R.§ 104.3(d)(4), (a)(4)(iv) 
4 11 C.F.R.§ 100.52(b)(3), (4) 
5 11 C.F.R. § 100.82(b),(c) 
6 11 C.F.R. § 100.82(b),(e) 
7 11 C.F.R. § 103.3(b) 
8 11 C.F.R. § 110.1 
9 11 C.F.R. § 110.9 
10 
11 INTERNAL REPORTS Audit Report 
12 CHECKED: Disclosure Reports 
13 
14 FEDERAL AGENCIES None 
15 CHECKED: 
16 
17 L INTRODUCTION 

18 MURs 7001, 7002, 7003 and 7009 involve allegations that Senator Rafael Edward "Ted" 

19 Cruz and Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley Knippa in his official capacity as treasurer (the 

20 "Committee"), violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"), by 

21 misreporting that loans Cruz made to his 2012 Senate campaign were funded with Cruz's 

22 "personal funds," rather than a line of credit with Citibank and a margin loan from a Goldman 

23 Sachs brokerage account that he owned jointly with his wife. In MUR 7003, the Complaint 

24 alleges that the violations were knowing and willful. In RAD Referral 16L-09, the Reports 

25 Analysis Division ("RAD") also referred the Committee to the Office of General Counsel 

26 ("OGC") for failing to properly report those loans. ̂ Additionally, the Complaint in MUR 7002 

27 alleges that Senator Cruz and the Committee knowingly accepted excessive contributions from 

28 Heidi Cruz, the Senator's wife, because her ownership share of the assets in the Goldman Sachs 

29 account was used to secure the margin loan. 

^ See Memorandum from Patricia C. Orrock, Chief Compliance Officer, FEC, to Daniel A. Petalas, Acting 
General Counsel, FEC (June 2,2016). 
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1 The Committee and Senator Cruz ("Cruz Respondents") admit that Senator Cruz funded 

2 loans to the Committee with a line of credit &om Citibank and a margin loan from a Goldman 

'3 Sachs brokerage account. The Cruz Respondents also admit that the Committee failed to 

4 disclose those loan sources on the reports the Committee filed with the Commission.'* The Cruz 

5 Respondents nevertheless argue that the Commission should dismiss the violations because the 

6 overall reporting of the loans in Senator Cruz's 2012 Senate Financial Disclosure Report and in a 

7 Miscellaneous Text Document (Form 99) filed with the Commission in 2016, was substantially 

8 correct.^ In addition, Heidi Cruz denies that she made an excessive contribution to the 

9 Committee because the Senator was entitled to use all of the funds in the Goldman Sachs account 

10 under Texas state law. ® 

11 The available information shows that the Committee inaccurately reported that the source 

12 of candidate loans totaling $ 1,064,000 was Senator Cruz's personal fimds, and that it failed to 

13 report required information about the true underlying sources of the loans. Accordingly, we 

14 recommend that the Commission find reason to believe that Ted Cruz for Senate violated 

15 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(d)(4) and authorize pre-probable cause 

16 conciliation with the Committee. We also recommend that the Commission find no reason to 

17 believe that Senator Cruz individually violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) and 11 C.F.R. 

18 § 104.3(d)(4). 

* Resp. of Cruz Respondents to MURs 7001, 7002, and 7003 (Apr. 4,2016) ("Resp. of Cruz Respondents") 
at 1. The Cruz Respondents filed a single response to MURs 7001,7002, and 7003 and asked the Conunission to 
consider that response as their response to MUR 7009,as well as their response to the RAD Referral. E-mail from 
Chris Gober, counsel for the Cruz Respondents, to Jeff S. Jordan, Complaints Examination and Legal 
Administration ("CELA"), EEC (May 18,2016,12:51 EST); e-mail from Chris Gober to CELA, FEC (Dec. 20, 
2016,11:49 EST). 

' Resp. of Cruz Respondents at 3. 

® Resp. of Heidi Cruz at 2-4 (Sep. 15,2017). 
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1 Finally, for the reasons discussed below, we recommend that the Commission exercise its 

2 prosecutorial discretion and dismiss the allegation that Heidi Cruz made, and the Committee 

3 accepted, an excessive contribution to the Committee.^ 

4 II. FACTS 

5 In 2012, Senator Ted Cruz was a U.S. Senate candidate in Texas and Ted Cruz for Senate 

6 was his authorized campaign committee. During the 2012 Senate campaign, the Committee's 

7 disclosure reports showed that Cruz made loans to the Committee totaling $ 1.43 million from 

8 "personal funds."® Most of the loans were provided shortly before the primary election on May 

9 29, 2012, and the primary runoff election on July 31, 2012. Ina2013 interview with the New 

10 York Times, Senator Cruz reportedly stated that he and his wife, Heidi Cruz, a managing director 

11 at Goldman Sachs, agreed to "liquidate" their "entire net worth" to free up the funds necessary 

12 for the candidate loans.' 

13 Senator Cruz filed his United States Senate Financial Disclosure Reports for 2012 ("2012 

14 Senate Report") on May 15, 2013.The 2012 Senate Report shows that Senator Cruz took out 

15 two loans in 2012: a "line of credit" from Citibank and a "margin loan" from Goldman Sachs.'' 

' See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821 (1985). 

® Ted Cruz for Senate 2011 April Quarterly Report at 229,263 (Apr. 15,2011); 2012 July Quarterly Report 
at 1,069, 1,196-97 (July 15, 2012); 2012 October Quarterly Report at 1,677, 1,872-71 (Oct. 15, 2012). 

' See Ashley Parker, A Wife Committed to Cruz's Ideals, but a Study in Contrasts to Him, N. Y. Times, 
Oct. 23,2013. 

See United States Financial Disclosure Report for Annual and Termination Filers for 2012. 
https://efdsearch.senate.gov/search/view/Daoer/12EFF92A-4EA8-44ED-AD2E-A32202BE5771/. 

'' Senator Cruz initially disclosed the 2012 loans on his 2011 Senate Financial Disclosure Report, which was 
filed on July 12, 2012 and reflects that he incurred the loans in 2012. See United States Financial Disclosure Report 
for New Employee and Candidate Reports for 2011. httDs://efdsearch.senate.gov/se'arch/view/Daper/7DA1762C-
66E3-4CE2-8E6E-623FE52D7809/ 

https://efdsearch.senate.gov/search/view/Daoer/12EFF92A-4EA8-44ED-AD2E-A32202BE5771/
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1 Each loan is listed in the $250,000 to $500,000 range, with an interest rate of "prime floating" 

2 the Citibank loan and "3% floating" for the margin loan from Goldman Sachs. The Report 

3 does not explain the purpose of the loans or indicate that the loans are connected to the Senate 

4 campaign. 

5 On January 13, 2016, almost four years after Senator Cruz made the loans in question to 

6 his campaign, the New York Times reported that the 2012 Senate Report contradicted his story 

7 about having liquidated family assets to fund the campaign loans made during the 2012 

8 election.Specifically, the New York Times reported that a Goldman Sachs margin loan and a 

9 Citibank line of credit, which both appear on the 2012 Senate Report but not on any FEC 

10 disclosure reports, were the underlying sources of his candidate loans.' ̂ 

11 On January 14, 2016, the day after the New York Times article was published, the 

12 Committee filed a Miscellaneous Text Document (Form 99) with the Commission stating that 

13 the margin loan and line of credit had been "inadvertently omitted" from the relevant 2012 FEC 

14 disclosure reports.The Form 99 also provided the following information on the loans: 

See United States Financial Disclosure Report for Annual and Termination Filers for 2012. 
https://efdsearch.senate.gOv/search/view/DaDer/l 2EFF92A-4EA8-44ED-AD2E-A32202BE5771 /. 

See Senate Report for 2012 at 8. An amendment to the 2012 report added "on demand" under the Term of 
loan for each of the loans. See https://efdsearch.senate.gov/search/view/paper/929B15B0-D2E8-4B91-95CC-
EF4DC76E9AF8/ 

See Mike Mclntire, Ted Cruz Didn'{Report Goldman Sachs Loan in a Senate Race, N.Y. Times, Jan. 13, 
2016, at 3 (attached to MUR 7001 Compl. and MUR 7009 Compl. and cited by MUR 7002 Compl. U 7 n.5), Mike 
Mclntire, Ted Cruz Failed to Report a Second Campaign Loan in 2012, N.Y. Times, Jan. 15,2016 (attached to 
MUR 7003 Compl. and cited by MUR 7002 Compl. H 10 n.9). The 2012 Senate Report does not reflect that assets 
were liquidated. 

'5 Id. 

Ted Cruz for Senate, Misc. Rpt. to FEC (Letter from Bradley Knippa, Treasurer, to RAD) (Jan. 14,2016). 
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1 "Goldman Sachs Margin Loan, Incurred 2012, 3% Floating Interest Rate; Citibank Line of 

2 Credit, Incurred in 2012, Prime plus floating Interest Rate."' ̂  

3 Following receipt of the Form 99, RAD spoke to the Committee's treasurer, assistant 

4 treasurer, or counsel on multiple occasions, instructed them on reporting requirements for loans 

5 funded by a financial institution, and urged them to amend the Committee's disclosure reports to 

6 correctly disclose the required information for each loan on Schedules C (Loans) and C-1 (Loans 

7 and Lines of Credit from Lending Institutions).The Committee initially agreed to file the 

8 amendments, requesting additional time to gather the documentation, but then told RAD that it 

9 was hesitant to do so given that complaints had been filed and an enforcement process initiated. 

10 RAD instructed the Committee that it should still file amendments to the reports in which the 

11 loans were disclosed and sent the Committee Requests for Additional Information for the 2012 

12 July Quarterly and 2012 October Quarterly Reports, which covered the periods when the loans 

13 were incurred. 

14 . The Committee showed the loans in question as first 

15 incurred during the 2012 July Quarterly and October Quarterly reporting periods. Because of 

16 this, the RFAIs were sent on these two reports. However, RAD advised the committee to amend 

17 all reports in which the loans were disclosed to make corrections.^" The RFAIs requested that 

18 the Committee amend its reports to provide correct loan information and submit the appropriate 

" Id. 

Referral at 2-3. 

'» Id. 

-® Senator Cruz's amended 2012 Senate Report notes that both the Citibank Line of Credit and Goldman 
Sachs Margin Loan were paid off in 2012. 
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1 supporting schedules.^' In response to the RFAIs, the Committee filed another Form 99 stating 

2 that it had "proactively provided additional information."^^ On May, 4, 2016, RAD advised the 

3 Committee that its response to the RFAIs was inadequate and the matter would be referred for 

4 further review.The Committee replied that it would not be filing any amendments at that time 

5 and has not done so to date.^" 

6 The Commission also conducted an audit of the Committee's 2012 election cycle activity 

7 and the Commission issued the Final Audit Report ("FAR") on June 22, 2017.^^ The 

8 Commission approved a finding that the Committee "failed to properly disclose $1,064,000 in 

9 candidate loans that originated with commercial lenders and failed to file the correct schedules C 

10 and C-1 The FAR determined that of the $ 1.43 million in loans that Senator Cruz reported as 

11 having come fi-om his personal funds, he actually borrowed $800,000 from Goldman Sachs 

12 ($400,000 on 5/18/12; $250,000 on 7/23/12; and $150,000 on 8/7/12) and $264,000 (on 5/22/12) 

13 fi"om Citibank ($1,064,000 total).^^ Specifically, Senator Cruz obtained the $800,000 from 

14 Goldman Sachs via three margin loans with a 3% floating interest rate secured by assets in a 

15 brokerage account jointly held with his wife, Heidi Cruz.^® Senator Cruz obtained the line of 

Id. 

Id. at 3; Ted Cruz for Senate, Misc. Rpt. To PEG (Letter from Bradley Knippa, Treasurer, to RAD) (Mar. 8, 
2016). 

" Id 

" Id at 4; Resp. at 2 (April 5, 2016). 

" Final Audit Report of the Commission on Ted Cruz for Senate (Jun. 22,2017). 

Id at 3. 

Id. at 8. The FAR found that $366,000 in loans from Senator Cruz to the Committee were from Cruz's 
personal funds. 

Senate Rpt. at 8. A margin loan is a financial instrument that allows account holders to borrow from a 
brokerage firm against the value of assets in their portfolio. 
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1 credit from Citibank with a floating interest rate that enabled him to draw cash advances against 

2 a limit of $275,000; unlike the Goldman Sachs margin loans, no person other than the candidate 

3 himself was liable for the Citibank line of credit.^® The documentation available from the 

4 Cruzes' Goldman Sachs account indicates that the account was opened on January 17, 2006, as 

5 an account held by Senator Cruz and his wife as Joint Tenants with Rights of Survivorship. 

6 The Customer Agreement for the account states that ownership "will be held in the manner 

7 indicated in the title of the account."^' The available account documentation does not indicate 

8 each account holder's ownership interest in the account. 

9 III. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

10 A. Alleged Failure to Disclose Required Informatiou about Candidate Loans 

11 The candidate's principal campaign committee must report all loans derived from an 

12 advance on the candidate's brokerage account, credit card, home equity line of credit, or other 

13 line of credit available to the candidate. The disclosure report must identify the person who 

14 makes a loan to the committee during the reporting period, together with the identification of any 

15 endorser or guarantor of such loan, and the date and amount or value of such loans." 

16 Commission regulations provide that a committee must disclose information about loans from 

Citibank, N. A., Revolving Credit/Time Note, Variable Rate (Individuals/Lawyers) at 1, dated May 11, 
2012 (signed by Rafael E. Cruz) (providing that the rate of interest shall be the highest of: (1) Citibank's base rate; 
(2) the Federal Funds Rate plus 2.0%; or P) the LffiOR rate plus 2.0%). Cruz's 2012 Senate Disclosure stated only 
that the line of credit had a "prime - floating" interest rate. Senate Report at 8. 

See Goldman Sachs New Account Information for Individuals, Multi-Parties and Custodianships for the 
Cruzes Brokerage Account. Attach. 1. 

See Goldman Sachs Customer Agreement. Attach 2. 

11 C.F.R. § 100.83(e). 

" See 52 U.S.C.§ 30104(b)(3)(E). 11 C.F.R. §104.3(a)(4)(iv). 
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1 the candidate to the campaign on Schedules C and C-1 If the candidate finances a loan to the 

2 campaign with an imderlying loan or line of credit, section 104.3(d)(4) of the Commission's 

3 regulations requires the committee to disclose on Schedule C-1, among other things; (1) date, 

4 amount, and interest rate of the loan or line of credit; (2) name and address of the lending 

5 institution; and (3) types and value of collateral or other sources of repayment that secured the 

6 loan.^^ 

7 Although Senator Cruz used funds borrowed from Citibank and Goldman Sachs to make 

8 loans totaling $ 1,064,000 to his 2012 Senate campaign, the Committee inaccurately reported on 

9 Schedule C that he made the loans to the Committee with his "personal funds," and failed to file 

10 a Schedule C-1 to properly disclose the details of the margin loan and line of credit. Thus, the 

11 (Committee did not comply with the reporting requirements of the Act or the Commission's 

12 regulations. 

13 The Cruz Respondents admit that the Committee failed to provide the required 

14 information regarding the loans and concede that they have yet to amend their reports.^® They 

15 argue, however, that the matter should be dismissed because the public record has been corrected 

16 as a result of the information disclosed in the 2012 Senate Report filed in May 2013, and in the 

17 Form 99 filed in January 2016.^' Respondents specifically cite to MUR 5421 (Kerry for 

11 C.F.R.§ 104.3(d). 

" /c/. § 104.3(d)(4).. 

As mentioned above, Respondents explain that the Committee refrained from submitting amendments 
because "the complaints [have] already been filed and [given] the confidentiality of the enforcement process." [add 
internal cite to previous mention] 

Resp. of Cruz Respondents at 3. 
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1 President) and argue that their reporting meets the "substantially correct" standard set forth in 

2 that matter^® 

3 In MUR 5421, the Commission approved a recommendation to dismiss the committee's 

4 inaccurate reporting of a series of loans the candidate made to his principal campaign committee 

5 where it inaccurately reported the date on which the candidate accessed the loan instead of the 

6 date he incurred one of the loans, and inaccurately reported the total fair market value of the 

7 collateral for the loan rather than simply the candidate's share of the property.^® The General 

8 Counsel's Report recommended, and the Commission approved, no further action on the 

9 inaccurate reporting because the reporting was substantially correct in that it "overall reporting 

10 of the loans otherwise accurately disclosed the precise flow of money" from the bank to the 

11 campaign."" 

12 In this matter, unlike MUR 5421, the overall reporting of the loans was not substantially 

13 correct and did not disclose the flow of the money. The Committee erroneously reported on a 

14 Schedule C that the source of the loans was the candidate's "personal fluids" when the funds 

15 were actually derived from Citibank and Goldman Sachs. Although Cruz reported the existence 

16 of the loans on his 2012 Senate Report filed in May 2013, the reports do not include all the 

" Id.; see also Second General Counsel's Rpt. at 9, MUR 5421 (John Kerry for 
President) (concluding that the reporting of the loan in question was substantially correct because the reporting of 
the loan was "accurate in most respects"). Respondents also cite MUR 6386 (Steve Fincher for Congress) for the 
proposition that a civil penalty is unwarranted for "this type of reporting error" for a legal loan with subsequent 
clarification. Resp. at 3. But, this matter is distinguishable from MUR 6386, where the Commission could not agree 
as to whether it should impose a civil penalty afrer the committee had amended its report to disclose the required 
loan information. See First General Counsel's Report at 6, MUR 6386; Certification, MUR 6386 (June 4, 2011). 
See also MUR 5198 (Cantwell) (no civil penalty where Committee amended reports prior to initiation of matter). 

Second General Counsel's Rpt. at 9, 10,11, MUR 5421 (John Kerry for President). The loans were 
comprised of smaller loans the candidate obtained from draws on personal lines of credit, totaling Sl.l million, 
and a larger loan from Mellon Trust, worth $6.4 million. 

Id ; Certification, MUR 5421 (Dec. 12, 2005). 
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1 details about the terms of the loans, nor does it disclose that Cruz used those loans to finance his 

2 campaign. In fact, at the time Senator Cruz made the loans to his campaign, he reportedly 

3 made a public statement indicating that he financed his campaign by liquidating assets, and not 

4 by taking out loans against assets.'^^ Thus, it was not until 2016 that the Committee first linked 

5 the Citibank and Goldman Sachs loans to Cruz's campaign. Further, the Committee has yet to 

6 amend any of the relevant PEC disclosure reports, has never filed a Schedule C-1 for the loans, 

7 and the Form 99 lacks some of the information required to be disclosed on Schedule C-1, 

8 including: (1) the dates and amounts of the loans; and (2) the types and value of collateral or 

9 other sources of repayment that secured the loan.'^^ 

10 We therefore recommend that the Commission find reason to believe that Ted Cruz for 

11 Senate violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(d)(4) by failing to disclose 

12 accurate information about $1,064,000 in candidate loans in its initial filings for the loans on the 

13 2012 July and October Quarterly Reports and in subsequent reports detailing the loans. Further, 

14 because the complaints did not articulate any factual or legal basis for finding Senator Cruz 

15 personally liable for the reporting violation, and we see no basis under the facts of this case to 

16 hold the candidate individually responsible for filing accurate and complete disclosure reports, 

17 we recommend that the Commission find no reason to believe that Senator Cruz violated 

18 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(d)(4).'''^ 

The 2012 Senate Report include the following information: (1) name of the lending institution; (2) year the 
loan was incurred; (3) approximate amount of the loan within a very broad range; (4) interest rate; and, (5) term of 
loan. 

See n.\0, supra. 

See 11 CFR. § 104.3(d)(4) (setting forth information required on schedule C-1). 

^ See 52 U.S.C. § 30104(a)(1); 11 C.F.R. § 104.14(d). See, e.g.. Factual & Legal Analysis at 3, MUR 6066 
(Hartley-Nagle for Congress, et al.) (finding no reason to believe that a candidate violated alleged reporting 
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1 We do not recommend that the Commission find that the Committee's reporting 

2 violations are knowing and willful as alleged by the Complaint in MUR 7003. That Complaint 

3 does not allege sufiGcient facts to demonstrate that the Respondents, intentionally failed to 

4 disclose the underlying sources despite a known legal obligation.'^^ Further, it does not appear 

5 that the Senator "secretly'"*^ took out the loans from Goldman Sachs and Citibank as alleged, 

6 given that he disclosed them on his Senate Financial Disclosure Report. 

7 B. Alleged Excessive Contributions By Candidate's Spouse 

8 No person, including a candidate's family members, shall make contributions to any 

9 candidate or authorized committee with respect to any election which, in the aggregate, exceed 

10 the Act's contribution limit, which was $2,500 during the 2012 election cycle.'*' Moreover, no 

violations because Complainant did not articulate any factual or legal basis for finding the candidate personally 
liable). 

A violation of the Act is knowing and willful when the "acts were committed with full knowledge of all the 
relevant facts and a recognition that the action is prohibited by law." 122 Cong. Rec. H3778 (daily ed. May 3, 
1976). This does not require proving knowledge of the specific statute or regulation the respondent allegedly 
violated. See United States v. Danielczyk, 917 F. Supp. 2d 573, 579 (E.D. Va. 2013) (citing Bryan v. United States, 
524 U.S. 184,195 & n.23 (1998) (holding that, to establish that a violation is willful, the government needs to show 
only that the defendant acted with knowledge that her conduct was unlawful, not knowledge of the specific statutory 
provision violated)). Rather, it is sufficient to demonstrate that a respondent "acted voluntarily and was aware that 
his conduct was unlawful." Id. (internal quotation marks omitted). This awareness may be shown through 
circumstantial evidence, such as a "defendant's elaborate scheme for disguising" her actions, or other "facts and 
circumstances from which the jury reasonably could infer [the defendant] knew her conduct was unauthorized and 
illegal." United States v. Hopkins, 916 F.2d 207,213-15 (5th Cir. 1990) (internal quotation marks omitted). As the 
Hopkins court noted^ "It has long been recognized that 'efforts at concealment [may] be reasonably explainable only 
in terms of motivation to evade' lawful obligations." Id. at 214 (quoting/ngram v. United States, 360 U.S. 672, 679 
(1959)). 

^ MUR7003Compl.at 1. 

" 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(A); Contribution Limits for 2011-2012, httDS.7/www.fee.gov/uDdates/contribution-
limits-for-2011-2012. See Buckley, 424 U.S. at 51 n.57,53 n.59 (upholding the constitutionality of contribution 
limits as to family members, reasoning that, "[a]lthough the risk of improper influence is somewhat diminished in 
the case of large contributions from immediate family members, we cannot say that the danger is sufficiently 
reduced to bar Congress from subjecting family members to the same limitations as nonfamily contributors"). 
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1 candidate or political committee shall "knowingly accept" a contribution that exceeds the 

2 applicable contribution limit/^ 

3 Federal candidates, however, may make unlimited contributions from their own "personal 

4 funds" to their authorized campaign committees."® The Act and Commission regulations provide 

5 that "personal funds" are (a) amounts derived from any asset that, under applicable State law, at 

6 the time the individual became a candidate, the candidate had legal right of access to or control 

7 over, and with respect to which the candidate had legal and rightful title; or an equitable interest; 

8 and (b) income received during the current election cycle of the candidate, including a salary and 

9 other earned income from bona fide employment; dividends and proceeds from the sale of the 

10 - candidate's stocks or other investments; gifts of a personal nature that had been customarily 

11 received by the candidate prior to the beginning of the election cycle; and, a portion of assets that 

12 are jointly owned by the candidate and the candidate's spouse equal to the candidate's share of 

13 the asset under the instrument of conveyance or ownership, but if no specific share is indicated 

14 by an instrument of conveyance or ownership, the value of '/2 of the property."^" 

15 When a candidate uses "personal funds" derived from assets that are jointly owned with 

16 his spouse, the amormt is limited to "the candidate's share of the asset under the instrument of 

17 conveyance or ownership;" if the instrument is silent, the Commission will presume that the 

18 candidate holds a one-half ownership interest.A candidate's spouse is permitted to act as the 

52U.S.C. §30116(a)(f). 

11 C.F.R. § 110.10; see also Buckley v. Valeo, 424 U.S. 1, 54 (1976) (holding restrictions on candidate's 
expenditures from personal funds unconstitutional). 

52 U.S.C. § 30101(26); 11 C.F.R. § 100.33(a), (b). 

" 52 U.S.C. § 30101(26)(C); 11 C.F.R. § 100.33(c). In some past matters, the Commission has determined 
that joint bank accounts are not subject to the one-half ownership presumption at 52 U.S.C. § 30101(26)(C) and the 
candidate may utilize the entire amount as "personal funds" because each account holder of the joint bank account 
had access and control over the whole account under the applicable state law. See, e.g., MURs 2754 (Lowey) 2292 
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1 endorser, guarantor, or co-signor of a loan obtained by the candidate but is deemed to have 

2 contributed an amount equal to the portion of the loan for which he or she agreed to be liable. 

3 But in the case of a secured brokerage loan or line of credit, there is no contribution from 

4 the spouse if the candidate's share of the collateral equals or exceeds the amount of the loan used 

5 for the campaign. For example, in MUR 5421 (Kerry for President), the complaint alleged that 

6 the candidate's spouse made excessive contributions to the Committee when the candidate made 

7 a loan to his campaign that was funded with a line of credit secured by a piece of property he 

8 owned jointly with his wife. The Commission found reason to believe that the candidate's 

9 authorized committee accepted an excessive contribution from the spouse because the factual 

10 record available at that time indicated that the candidate's interest in the jointly owned collateral 

11 property may have been less than the amount of the loan.^^ In MURs 4830 and 4845 (Udall), 

12 which, like the current matter, involved loans secured by a brokerage account owned jointly by 

13 the candidate and his wife, the Commission determined that the loans from the candidate to the 

14 campaign "were based entirely on [the candidate's] half of the assets jointly controlled with" his 

(Stein) and 3505 (Klink). See also OGC Comments on Bauer for President 2000, Inc. - Proposed Audit Report 
(LRA #543), May 6,2002, at 6 (discussing history of joint bank account exception to the one-half ownership 
presumption). But the Commission has not so concluded in cases involving loans obtained by a candidate using 
Jointly owned assets, as reflected in MURs 5421,4530, and 4845, which are discussed below. See OGC 
Memorandum to Commission on Revision of Regulation Pertaining to Candidate's Use of Property in Which 
Spouse Has an Interest, Agenda Doc. #81-181, Oct. 30,1981, at 7 n.3. 

" 11 C.F.R §§ 100.52(b)(3)-(4), 100.83(c). A reduction in the unpaid balance of the loans reduces 
proportionately the amount endorsed or guaranteed by the spouse. Id. §§ 100.52(b)(3), 100.83(b).. 

" Id. §§ 100.52(b)(4), 100.83(b)(l)-(2). 

" See Factual and Legal Analysis at 11, MUR 5421 (John Kerry for President). The Commission 
subsequently took no further action on this allegation after the investigation revealed that the spouse's interest in the 
property did not serve as collateral for the loan. See Second General Counsel's Report at 6-7, MUR 5421; 
Certification, MUR 5421 (Dec. 12,2005). 
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1 spouse. Thus, the Commission found no reason to believe that the spouse made an excessive 

2 contribution to the candidate's authorized committee.^® 

3 In this matter, the Commission's audit of the Committee confirmed that Senator Cruz 

4 made three loans to the campaign totaling $800,000 using assets from a Goldman Sachs 

5 brokerage account owned jointly with his wife, Heidi Cruz, as security.^' As explained above, if 

6 Senator Cruz's ownership share of the assets used as security for the loan is less than the amount 

7 of the loan used for the campaign, then his wife will have made a contribution to the campaign. 

8 The available record, including documents and information obtained through the 

9 Commission's recently concluded audit of the Committee, does not include the instrument of 

10 conveyance or ownership for the Goldman Sachs account.®® The unswom Response of Heidi 

11 Cruz asserts that the assets used to collateralize the margin loans were acquired during the 

12 marriage and were subject to the commimity property rules of Texas.®' If true. Senator Cruz 

13 would have a full ownership interest over the entire amount in the account and no excessive 

14 contribution would result. It is unclear, however, whether those assets were in fact community 

" Factual and Legal Analysis at 8, MURs 4830/4845. 

ldat9. 

" FAR at 3. The assets in the brokerage account include cash, deposits and money market funds, stocks and 
bonds. 

In analyzing the issue of whether Heidi Cruz may have made an excessive contribution to the Committee as 
a result of the Goldman Sachs loan, the Audit Division assigned one-half of the value of the account to the 
candidate. See Supplemental Comments on Resubmitted Draft Final Audit Report - Ted Cruz for Senate (LRA 
#976) at 2,3 (Feb. 24,2017). Based on that analysis, the Audit Division identified only one instance where an 
amount exceeding 50 percent of the value of the account was used, and that deficit was quickly remedied (within 60 
days) when a loan payments was made. Id. Thus, there was no recommended finding on this issue. The analysis in 
this report does not assign one-half the value of the account to Senator Cruz, instead relying on the plain language of 
the regulations at 11 C.F.R. §§ 100.33(c) and 100.52(b)(4) and MURs 5124 and 4830/4845 which examine whether 
the candidate's actual share of the collateral equals or exceeds the amount of the loan used for the campaign. 

" Community property in Texas is defined as all property acquired during marriage other than separate 
property. Tex. Fam. Code Ann. §§ 3.002,3.003. 
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1 property and whether Senator Cmz had full ownership rights over those assets.®" Respondents 

2 submitted no documentation to support the assertion, and the account documentation available 

3 from the audit shows that the brokerage account was owned by the Cruzes as "Joint Tenants with 

4 Rights of Survivorship."®' Texas law provides that a party to a joint account may legally 

5 withdraw money from such an account, but a joint tenancy does not necessarily confer 

6 ownership over amounts in the account.®^ 

7 The Commission could seek documentation to resolve the question of what share of the 

8 assets in the brokerage account was owned by Senator Cruz and, thus, whether Heidi Cruz made 

Even property acquired during the marriage can be characterized as separate property. For example, if 
during the marriage, property is acquired by gift, will, or inheritance, or property is purchased with proceeds from 
separate property, such property is considered separate property, not community property. Texas Const. Art. XVI 
§ 15; Tex. Fam. Code Ann. § 3.001(2). Further, salary, wages and income from separate property earned during the 
marriage, although community property, are the sole management community property of the spouse who earned the 
wages or owns the property. Tex. Fam. Code Ann. § 3.102(a). In addressing fraud perpetrated by one spouse in 
disposing of the other spouse's interest in community property, Texas courts have stated that "[e]ach spouse owns 
an undivided one-half interest in all community assets and funds regardless of which spouse has management and 
control." Massey v. Massey, 807 S.W. 2d 391,401-02 (Tex. App. 1991) (citing Carries v. Meador, 533 S.W.2d 365, 
371 (Tex.App.1975)). 

See Your Goldman Sachs New Account Information, Account Name (Rafael E. and Heidi S. Cruz), and 
Account Type (JTWROS) (opened Jan. 17,2006). Attach 1. The Cruzes are domiciled in Texas and it appears that 
the account was opened in Texas. Attachment 1. Account Statements for the period March through July 2012, 
shows account activity consisting mostly of dividends or interest on stocks, funds, and bonds. Account 
documentation states that the agreement shall be governed by New York law without reference to its choice of law 
doctrine, however, and it is unclear whether such statements in the documentation would supersede Texas law. See 
Access Telecom. Inc. v. MCI Telecomm. Corp., 197 F.3d 694, 705 (5"" Cir. 1999) ('Texas contractual choice-of-law 
provisions are ordinarily enforced if the chosen forum has a substantial relationship to the parties and the 
transaction" (citing De Santis v. Wackenhut, 793 S.W.2d 670,677-78 (Tex. 1990)). "However, a choice-of-law 
provision will not be applied if another jurisdiction has a more significant relationship with the parties and their 
transaction than the state they choose, that jurisdiction has a materially greater interest than the chosen state, and the 
jurisdiction's fundamental policy would be contravened by the application of the law of the chosen state." Id. at 705. 
Texas courts rely on Restatement (Second) of Conflict of Laws § 187 to decide whether other considerations trump 
the parties' choice of law. DeSantis v. Wackenhut, 793 S.W.2d at 677-78. 

" Tex. Est. Code Ann. § 113.102 (as to "all parties to a joint account, the account belongs to the parties in 
proportion to the net contributions by each party to the sums on deposit unless there is clear and convincing 
evidence of a different intent"); see In re Marriage of McNelly, No. 14-13-00281-CV (Tex. App. - Houston [14''' 
Dist.] May 15,2014) (mem. op.) (citing to Tex. Est. Code Ann. § 113.102 and holding that a spouse does not 
acquire a one-half ownership interest in the other spouse's separate property just because that property was 
deposited into a joint brokerage account); see also Hicks v. State, 419 S.W.3d 555, 559 (2013) (holding that though 
a party to a joint account is authorized to withdraw funds from the account, it does not establish that the party owns 
the fimds or divest title from the actual owner). 
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1 an excessive contribution to the campaign. We do not recommend, however, that the 

2 Commission further pursue this allegation. The Commission has already conducted an audit of 

3 the Committee, considered this issue, and made no findings. Under these circumstances, we do 

4 not think that it would be a prudent use of the Commission's resources to further investigate the 

5 ownership of the account. Accordingly, we recommend that the Commission dismiss as a matter 

6 of prosecutorial discretion the allegations that Senator Cruz and the Committee violated 

7 52 U.S.C. § 30116(f) and 11 C.F.R. § 110.9 by knowingly accepting excessive contributions and 

8 that Heidi Cruz violated 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(A) by making excessive contributions to Ted 

9 Cruz for Senate. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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1 V. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2 1. 

3 3. 
.4 
5 

6 4. 
7 
8 

9 5. 
10 
11 
12 

13 6. 
14 

15 7. 

16 8. 

17 9. 

18 
19 
20 
21 
22 Dated: 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

35 

36 Attachme 

Open a Matter Under Review in RAD Referral 16L-09; 

Find reason to believe that Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley Knippa in his official 
capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) and 11 C.F.R. 
§ 104.3(d)(4) by failing to disclose required information about candidate loans; 

Find no reason to believe that Senator Cruz violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(3)(E) 
and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(d)(4) by failing to disclose information about candidate 
loans; 

Dismiss the allegations that Senator Cruz and Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley 
Knippa in his official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30116(f) and 
11 C.F.R. § 110.9 by knowingly accepting excessive contributions and that Heidi 
Cruz violated 52 U.S.C. § 30116(a)(1)(A) by making excessive contributions. 

Authorize conciliation with Ted Cruz for Senate and Bradley Knippa in his 
official capacity as treasurer, prior to a finding of probable cause to believe; 

Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis; 

Approve the proposed Conciliation Agreement; and 

Approve the appropriate letters. 

Lisa J. Stevenson 
Acting General Counsel 

5/23/18 BY: i. 
Kathleen M. Guith 
Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

AO, 

fin Lee 
Acting Assistant General Counsel 

a <r)m/yu/uuL 

Dominique Dillenseger 
Attorney 
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1 1. Goldman Sachs New Account Information for Individuals, Multi-Parties and 
2 Custodianships (Cruz Brokerage Account) 
3 2. Goldman Sachs Customer Agreement (Cruz Brokerage Account) 
4 
5 
6 



.1 

New Account Information 
for Individuals, Multi-Parties and 
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For Use with the Following Account Types: 
Individual, Joint Tenant with Rights of Survivorship. 
Tenants in Common, Community Property, IRA and Custodianship 
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sdmltilslraHan or itoAiicel. env other eilkar who pertains a palky euttq ftmcltan or aiy ofhei pcnen who pertaros ilniBAi pePq nuklrie luKllons 
iBrlheconwsnyLilveoAieootiwewhMhBrvauirainasccBlhtaemcetPtaMecdmvnwIlhveurliHwuiei 

02 
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Personal Information 
Individuals, Multi-Pailies and Custodianships CONIWUED 

I 

AmUATION INFORMATION - ACCOUNT HOLDER NUMBER 1 
As ussd In IMS psragraph, "you* mesns llie IntfividiMi owner ot Uw account or each owner ol a iiiiilil>parly accourl. Check all appli
cable boos and pravMe an eipipnallon in Iha apace provided « you or If an Immedlals lamiiy momber (Spouse ch U. sMec braUiec 
parent inoVier>ln-hnc raUKPbrteac stsierbrbst broMwr-ln-lsit daugMcriiHB«c san-liHaw), or oUier person who ntppoits you. or 
whem you siipporl to a material estent (Batcubled by the NASD as SSK or mare ol a personTi inceme bi the prevb us catandar ycarX 
Is a person described betew rrestricted penmsl. if you are a 'Vcitileled parsetf* but your benallclBl bitarHt in Hie aecaimli 
netcd on Pass A« Is mb sr less, please cbeck the appiepNele ealspery of •Yesbtded peiieil" and tndlcale ymir pereanlade 
Interest In the oeceuirts listed an Pa«e Ar2 endsr "EeptanellaH" betow. 

LJ l>) AnNASOmcnberllnnaiolheftieterAMiH. 

' ' aMteMihSl 
iBwtidnenicB 

aiabr 
V «r ayert ol Ml lUSb mteiaer lliei or 

lecAatolnUw 
e cenbatls secuniM and Okecl pHUcipnion pisoranO. 

or any sthei arakeiMssier wner man a BmHed p ffpow ereotr 
HCISKIH budiMsi's dallied Mltiv Is soKlws ny and ssBbn 

f] nQAp«nanhanaiaiiUioiilyUbwaiidMOiNarniesleraSsnlk>aiiliio>aadloano(iMMIoalnturaaeefenipaaii. n<oilawnl 

nwdpnlnwSSl'lniMinMlamoRltoKw'anroih^eNM^^ 
ol stoiiuitA bid nsl fli a feyal enllly Uwl h beatikUir omwd by bnmedUi leaflr naiebois cr ie> an hvctlneM ewe Mmpiiiiny a 
yreap el If Hndi, ealHiois, bwlem essecMet er eUieii «bo poei Ibov mangy le Inml M slotk er otker MCUflHn and are coSKlViily 
nuondawiarn neleya 

bfotot/anlaflM at IMII21%ol on n iMAeor«aaMioomi.dlraeiiKati>a(iiOHolabio«oinMinigteefiii»aiiiiiiMBUtpaie 
e^thUonnialiiadiPtyoratiatet/aealirtttlicflbatiallmRedpiasoKarolow^K 

n M A eonoa «bo OMK, oaecliy or IndaodiK <) ai IOMI tO% el a pakac repodlny fompsay leal enm, dlitcUv, ai lead m ol a 
braleiAlcalrr(olherlbanaCrilMpiaooMbittwMealen.a'iai«lleail2S%atapiiblercpatliny«onvanylbMewnsalleHt2SH 
(doectlyarlmiiiecliylbra«yliaiMaioNllniHiiyntayeiilill«,lnedcbetnllleb(lieimin«dWeMienlGaMalliMd2StUo-aqenUly 
nut ii«m at iMil 5% ol 0 bratwAkolet (olhw llun a Umflcd purpoM to oHiMedal m oatheaie oltar Iban poblk imi anlei uul 
are iHIrd on a nabonol sKuiMin nthaoye o< liaded on Uw NASOAO Naliend Marktl. 

• |»l) i am a •yeililctod peruir M (adkalrd abovr toil my pmoniaqt inleiMt to Ibe aceeenb dried on tayo A-2 is HoTifd -o o 
imp itpnsoM md mirett IbAt lAn MB bOgno OoMtofn Sochi A Cn. alibi dmo ot lb* Mliftato II0 ponon wHh 0 boMlkiri' 
bdaiait hlht accoiml icli 010 Itadto or In 0 flductary copodly tiocb M an ittomoK baeesatoiH, orlleBwM cooittlu all to 
OoldmoiA SiriisSCmobmll loiiMNaBayliisUiidinmltiftoconaKlleowlinialnttMPiibBraatfloe. 
Ciplaiwlloir 

Ralatlanslilpiecs iSacbsi 

Aio you a CSSCa emploioe orielalfd la e GSSCa onployeer 

(/*. •NO (Lvifct. 
Voaan'»ld'idlaa6SSCaoawtoyo«aliill>lfaaaaw<rtM^^d 

self 
WlidiiUienaliimelyeorraldleniNpefimibi»tnipio|i«7too.tpoiiie, 

•J 

Seder Pellllcainyura: 

Areynofboiy Inmiddc tairitomtmbwT'ieiifarpaHicallbwA 
ddnedsi acunwd er lemieriMlN sWciillnllieeaoullvbHyUrilvA 
adnWdnHKiaaiBryerfudidHbiancbsSdlaeBwrvieidfNlieliiM 
eMederiiaaaHA]arelll(lalolapdeiEdpiMy.aiMSoteii!calliieola 
yoMf nomtaiiitd canmoKId OMMpilM coreorsdo \ eulnnA or olbir 
tidily UfBKdbyor lor BianeiiemariudtlndMdiialf 

QTVB • No nvtooieiHiallaK 

^ CrifllA •. CiOMil 
gfTdiwf 

8-S 
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.5 y Personal Information 
Individuals. Multi-Parties and Custodianships GONTDOKO 

AFFILIATION INFORMATION - ACCOUNT HOLDER NUMHER 2 
As used In tMs patagrapn, -you- means Uie i uaU ' ol llie aceoifflt er each owner of a multi party aecoun. Check all appD-
cable bcKS and prmMe an eepianailan In the space provided « you or a an Inunedlale lamlly member apouse, chl it sistet brolhet 
pareni. motner-ln'taw. falhar-ln-law, slileHn^aw. brciner'liHawL daughter-bwaiis Mmht-lawl, or olner person who 1 upporls you, or 
•mom you support to a material eiteni (calculated fay the NASD as 2S« or more of a perwirs Income in the pravieiis calendar yearl 
Is a person desertlied balew rreslrlcled persons'T If yau are • "leslflcled poraeir but your bentllclal Inteieit lis tha necoimtf 
llettd en Paya A>Z la lOK er lets, pliete cheek the appropriate eatt«ary of •^eitrtetid peiton- and Indltala your pefcinta«e 
Interest fas iha accounts listed on Poqe A-Z under "Eaplanatlen" below. 

• (ti AntusDmnneer lUmoi olhci brolcrAesler. 

n Oil An employee osiocfattd peiiais or agent ol ao NASO nwmstr fliin 01 any olher broSer/Uealcr loiMr Ilun a tlmacd purpose oioiier 
6tHa defined as e brakaiMealir "here aulhoiiiBllon to engage in the ucuiltiti SuiMsu l> UniHed solely to pureflating tnd selling 
InMslnwol compendVittsWe cenhacls searBlei and dbeci partlclpBtlen ptggiaoil. 

n dio A penon who has aulhontv lo buy and sea scnulUes for o banh sayings and loan nsiecbiiois fmuruia compiny. bnartmein 
ceninmK bwesUntnt adviiei (leghtemd er uniegisleradi or coliedlwInyeilnMl account, «Mch h dellRedM any hy dge hmA Invesl-
mant parlneMMis invatlmnnt canMratlao.er any oliwf coiiecllyo UwDstawiii yeMcle that h angtgad prbiurBy Iniha punhMC and lole 
al saciirii eh auliioi in a legal cntHy mat It bbnondaily Dtmed ay imintdHU nmHy niinbers or IB) an bwailmenl dab e enarislng a 
group cllrlendf, 
latporilale lor maabig Invcsbnenl dechlons. 

HanmHyiniinaersoai 
s atioclalot or others who pool ilidrmottty lo iiwast at itocs or 0 send iteconeclfyely 

• awA ns. dUecriy. at least HNS et .11 
tnlUY thai owns al Isnt lOtt or a aroketfUcalrriMhei inan alb 

iMhcilhanaianRed Kisr' heUUealari or ar leau xns 0) M 

("1 (yiApenonwhaonini, directly or MifgcHhtOal laait msolaauaec repwlbigcompany thai own, dliccUhaiiaaitSy.ota 
biolicf.Ueaiaf(ellwr than omnUedpuipmhrakar/naiarl, or (Biol least 2SH do pubic lapgiUiig company lhai MM at cailBSH 
Ulittiy or InOlrrtlly Ifuaugll edbUfona) InlrrvriUng aoiniai. in yarn ni wMcfi Ihc Immyslalt parsnl own. al Irait tStSf p aoenuiy 
HiMowaolleaitSUaraa r than a floiBad purpose btelerAealttS In each case oiliaf Uun oubOc comi ides MM 
ore Stled on a nallonal tacwillit eichanga nr trnded on Ihe NASDAQ Narlonil MafSel. 

• (W i am a -tetiriclfd porMn* as awlcotad ohova but mypitniiUei Intaieil In (ho accounlt Bitodon Page A>I li lAntted -e..., 

lAfi tepceiint and warrant «hil lAw wdl Inbrm GeWmn stehi 0 Co. al Iht tkne d tha Ollarlng, U e puna wMh a btMildd 
mierafl Hi Ihe account acta 01 a Midir ur in 0 Odudaiv casodlv (audi as an aHornir. occounlaBt, or Knaadil 
Cetdmaiu Sichf 0 Ca whan H aeli aa I 

SsplinallDie 

lUad rtoeanmcllanwHIlaa bmid PuUlc Ohitliig. 
am to 

Rtioltanihlp lo CoMman Sachs: 

Are you n CSSCe. armieyce er rdalad lo a CSSCa emdoyee? 

• »» 

dthbpenord n you an idileu Ui a OSSCo. enuioyeh what h Ihe 

S- Cyvbfc 
Vilimistlioni!uiedvwrelilianitilpiiBlitlilsemplByceT|og.tpeuit.'' 

Saalor PdMleil Plgim: 

£emuarbeiiyiometflatelanciyni«BbwaienlwpidlKatllUm' 
difieid as a cuiriid or tonner sentar dIUil m Ihe aucdivi, logUallyQ 

mnaryail " 
abdcdarnal),asanlei 
goyerr 

d d 0 poinical piflh 0 sc dor e wmliye d a 
a.biitniu.otdha 

Midlv tanpedhy or tartnebenaBI dtuthbidlvldiiair 

tS/ia y NO li\as.eipianaiiait 
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Investment Experience 
and Financial information 

Individuals, Multl'Parties and Custodianships OONTMUED 

4 
I 

ACCOUNT HOLDER NUMBER 1 

Annvtl InMiM Inim All SourcM In U.S. Osllirr EKiude 
bKoim from ipome or |oM accDunl iwlder. 

ACCOUNT HOLDER NUMBER il ill applicable) 

Annul) Ineoma Irom AO SOWCM h US. OallMi: Cichidi 
inceme from speuw or toint account Iwuar. 

Uquld Nit Worth In US. OeOin: Eiclude (ho value of your 
retidenci, orhule partnenhlps and other illli|uid anets. 

Uqiitd Not Warth In US. OoDarf: Eiclude lh» value of your 
residence; private parlnersMps and ether ino>ild assers. 

Ibtol Nil worth In UA Oollin; Auels minus total flabBlties 
cKiudlno the value ol your primary residence. 

Iblat Not Worth In IAS. DollerR Assets minut total iisbaities 
eeciudtnp ihe value ol your primary residence 

Are you or Is thin account an tAceridltid Immtor^ 
A personwlwse individual net ymtli. or (obit net wotlli with a 
spousn is over si mmon or who had an individual Income' in 
eitess ol $200000 in each ol the Iwo nwsl recent years, nr 
lekit Ineome with a spouse bi eicess ol SSOOLOOO in each ol 
those years and reasonably eipecis lo reach Ihe same Inceme 
level hi the current year. 

Are yau or It thia account on tAccrcdMod iiiuMtor"? 
A person whose bidlvldtial not wert^ or Join! lelworthwftha 
spouses is over SI milOen or who had anindlviAiai income'In 
eiceis ol $200000 In each el the two most ricem yaais, or 
lolnt hKome with a spouse bi euass ol $30a»00 In each of 
those years and reasonably aspects to reach Ihe same income 
level in (he current year. 

wm yau have at least $7S0O00 under manayemsnt 
with eS&Co. at the time you fund your accounIT 

wni yeu have at least STSOOBO under nuragement 
with OS&Co. at the time you hind your acaamiT 

•IndMduil bieonw muns sdhnled greis incumc;«iipmlid ler ftdenl Incaiw In RiapoHS. ton any Uieome aHrlUutobic to • ssaina or in propvitv 
gyiMduyaisovw 

C-2 
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Account Services Information 
Indlvlduats, Multi-Parties and Custodianships 

CASH SWEEP SERVICe 

wUe PunuMt totM CiisionKr AQfvcnc 
you authorlie GSfiOk to sweep any Itw credll balanees In yaur acounis MB one or awre msiiey market fundi tint are luUaUft 
neaie be aware thai diflereiil fundi wOl t»ve dUferenl feet atioelaled wfih them. To (he erieni yaur accauni b elplUe, yau wni earn 
mtered on Iree oadlt balances in aecardaiiea wHh CSSCal cinlemary pracltce In (he eyeni yau da not wbh to bane cain sweep. 

DISCLOSURE TO ISSUERS AND NON-U.S. TAXATION AUTHORITIES 
Reaie eliect (he apptoptlale boi below If yau do net censeat to the stated dbctoiure. 

Pbeleeure la Iseuen. Ybu undersiand that tiSSCa it required to tf lOose to an bnwr the name, address, and position ai 
Its oistemers who are benelklsl awners at that Itsuar^ securities unless the cuilamer ehlecls. H you objeci. please check 
theboibstom 
0 Idenetcensenttodlictosuretebtuen. 

Mseiesve to NBaH),S. Tisallao AullMillies. Vau understand that CSKO. may Oulose certain bifarmathm l» nan-liS. 
lasalion authorities in anelfon to reduce yeur wilhlieldinq lai Ibblilty on certain nan-lLS source hcame paynems. The 
tnlBrmatten dbdated may eansbt of yeur name address. t« Uenlllleallon number, lax demlcib and the qinnillv el the 
sutled ferelqn securttydei) yau may held. If yau a4aet. please Chech the bei bsbw 
n ldaaetceasentlodls<iaimlonan-us.tnatiBnaiilhDmiss. 

f ''i 

WEBSITC ACCESS 
Please check the box below to indicate you weal access to the CSSCo. wehslle to v w your account bdonnaiton rnet/br to trade 
to the extent such access or abfflly to trade b aveHaWo. tbu must ptorlde your o-mail addrass on the Personal lnlcnnat!an page In 
order to have access to these services 

isirvbee • VliwtlirmMithtoseefetoi 

|9f TtradtfhniiqhtheuseafeliclronlcstrviecSiletheestcotBvsltobe 
Ifernon-dbcrctlsnBrybreMrageeeeaunboniw 

n AulMrtsiathhdperlysgsiittavliwyaureeBauolelhiaiiahllieiiseefslsdtaidessfvfGes 
iVbur Aqent wn receive a copy ol the Third Mrty Aqent Infomwtlon and Aqreemenls decumsM) 
NameefAgeidfS);. 

If yau an aullieililBg a Third Party Aqsnl ta view year accaunls, picasa Indleata te which aeeeunts Ihia air lieifamtfcn 
appfte If yeu do net know the aceetinl luimbers (or they haw net been assiqned)k please IndkMe the exaci liltm of 
theocseunts. 

• Aiithsrbatbnappneita ad curreal and hitureaeceiBilt with the lanmaceBiint names as used In IMsdammcnt 

n AiilhailiallenewileBerdvtatiicsaeeeaimlalsufpiynumbtneraxBclllllesh 

ONUNE DELIVERY 
ay ehechlnq the box bstowt you agree (0 recdve prespectuses (fidosum documenln fflonlliiy aceoum statemarts an f other 
cofflfflunicaihim Irem GSSGx electranlcBay when nodlne deflvaiy b anlbble. (Mess you teO us tu the conisar% cacti acemmt holder 

V when avatlalde. Vbu have read aM aqme la • he Bectmnic 
lery of con mimlcailons. 

b ceesenllng end wiu Kcdve aa such decmiienb by eiectraidc 
Services Supptomenl to the Custenisr AqmemeiL vdilcb has important 
Whan available CSfiCft may pest certain biformatien to yeu en the OSSCn. webstte: nhere you can view and print kitennaiiaa 
Vou may have to consent etsctranlcBlly In order to recelva some or ab of these CQfflfflunlcatians etectindcalp Seme of tbesa 
communlcab'ens may not be avditaWe etaclrenkmiv. 

• andetberc 
MMjNEOiaiVSIiy el pmspeelum. dbctosara isnta, meirtMy escQUBl atatemsnla 

IH 
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Account Services Information 
Individuals. Multi-Parties and Custodianships coMmuo 

DUPLICATE STATEMENTS AND CONFIRMATIONS 

tl you wauM hw dupUcate statemenu or ccntlimaUoni tent to Mmtene elie. such oi your aaounlan or lawyer, p ease Indltate 
PelDK Uiden you ten ut lo Ihe contrary, aU duplicate tlatemenlt wBI Pe dellycred eleclronlcany wtieo available. Tit miore, pleaie 
provide the e-nall address lor the peiwnis) you would like to receive dupilcale staiements. 

NMI* and RdallaMlib to aaeunl 

CmaSS yilcatvuniHIvii 

NaiM end iMailcmMo 10 account 

C-mii Addrou (oieeu speafy n can Mniiiivn 

Slrcel 

coy State 

Mai code CouRlnr 

Stiaei 

City State 

PnlalCadB. courtly 

Vtouldyouawlnlic 

• StUvoMnlf only fUCai eonv •Beth 

WMd yeu ns IMS emon tencelva; 

riSlMnnwiUflMy Q CMUmwIimi only LlM" 

CONSENT TO H0USEH0LDIN6 
I consent to your nuRlno in one onvoiopo my slalenient and otner related cemmunlcaiiont Irom GSBCa wllii the siaiemeni and 
ceimniinlcaiions lo oliiers who iiye at my address, indudinp combining such InlermaUon yrllhin one report. I unden land that i may 
revoke this conseni at any time at which time you wUI resume sending my slatemenit and otner eofflmunicailons iu me separately. 

WIRING INSTRUCTIONS 

This section should be compleled II you win be periodically tranifeiilng tunds lo your bank account. 

NameolBudiD-OniwRRipinit' 

' <1 
AddrcM 

ri 
Mjma alAcnunl 

"E- W-A'A# S". C,*Ui 

CMOael Nane. I and (mall Addieia ID oMSkatla) 

oiiMU kntnicl on da ma ayyiv la as accauMi «su ai« opmlne Kith Ml oackaoe a 
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Account Services Information 
Individuals, Multi-Parties and Custodianships a)NT»IUID 

OROERS PLACED BV OTHERS 
IIVOU are autiwnilnq someom lo pucs oiilm on your bchail M eemwcUan wUi yeur stcountm piran complete liw 
AutlHriiaiion ol Third Rvty BS Agent 

CUSTODIAL INFORMATIOH 

Untess.you chock the hoi below, GSSCe. wlU serve os cwlodlBn lor your brakereqe and Advlfofv Account 
(Oifcrelianary end Advliorv iRAs imnt have CSSCa as cusiadbn.! 

• TMid Party OS Cutlodltn, Vhu want Iheonuty named baiowlB serve at cutMbn lor your brakerageend/br A MmyAcceunl. 

NsowolC^an 

Accoon ttinbv at CintodM 

Cortaditaia 

IIUieielMtnKllensdaiwI appv loaea OgiriWtMtl 

CONSENT TO RECEIVE FAXES, TELEPHONE CALLS AND E-MAIL FROM OSI'iCO. 

By prevWbig yaw curreni facsimile and lelephone numben and ynur o maa addMsset and any niccetwr or addnkmal Ixslmila and 
letephone numiwrs and evnail addresses, lo CSKo and by signing the Accounl Ibnns and Condtllets, you hereby Mnsent lo receipt 
of any laieA lelaiihone colls or e niali Irom GS&COL in cemocHon wllh your acceunlslSt Auhidliig but not lAnlled U the oiler of any 
producti or services lor such accounts. Vbu understand inat you may revoke yeur consent at any iHne In writl^ di ecled to your 
Inverlfflenl Professtonal 

SIGNATURE 

lofHimlhatlhaver 
Fin 
laRhmi 

arebiUv ravteaRd an ol the Psnanal Mnmalien on pages Ba and B-A Uw Inveslmciit Ibperfeaee and 
I eat brth on pagan en and C>2 end nHbm that tl b Ime and 

I lo entlna deBvery ea page IHi If otoctaA the Centenl to Hn 
Raealw Fbiat. Iblephaiie CeOs and G-MeB bom OSSCa. on page D-a 

en page D4; as wen as Ihr Oansant to 

0-3 
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individuals, Multi-Parties and Custodianships 
Brokerage Account Information 

BROKERAGE ACCOUNT INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

Indicate llw Awcitount okledtee tor cacti limited dUetattaDary and i enUHMry brake I account irdleate yaw diolcc 
bated an the dannlltana at CaniemtiM, Balanced. Capital Appnclallani and Spaealallva liwailmanta ai deRnad balaiK 
GSSCau cannat auaranlca Uiat any particular bivettment or yaur Inwatmtnta peaeraily will achieve yaur hieelment aljaellw. 

Capital Appredallan • Account primarny aeeta long-lerm capHai appreelallon. Accaunt may ai» Inctuoe Mma slian term 
trading and margin tiaveraqC). invosler b wilibiq lo anume a higher rbh commeiaurale wHh Invealer^ eipeeted raiuriB 
and untfarciands thai inare It no guarantee thai tne liweitmenl^ atlher Individually er In ttip Accoimt at a whcle. wBl aliatai 
tuehretvmt, 

Specularlve biveslmenti - Pleaae chech the appraprbte bat lncan|unellon with your choice ol Capitol Appnclatlon cr 
Balanced It you wbh to make speculative bweslinents, engage In apparlunbtlc trades, including bul not ibnllsd to uncovered 
opilan trading (both Ibted and over-the counter), day trading and other chart term trading^ and pttrchaw lor il^ etRhange. 
cofflHiecaies, hitures and non^lndpal protected taslrumenis Vbu understand and actinewtedge that the toreialng bi 
Involve a high degree of risk and are willing and able to bear the lull rhk elloss ol prbtcfpol bivesled in such nraslments. 
AddNlonallK aeeeunle that may make stgnincank bwailmante In alternative Invaetmenta must check Seccidativc. 

Balanced • Account primarily seeks kmglerm capital appreelallon and current Income. Account may also bKinde a dmliM 
amouni ot shortierm trading and margbi (leverage), inveitar Is Whiing to attune modaraie lo high rttk eommimturale Wlih 
invesicr'i aipecled returns and underslandt that Ihero b no guarantee that lite Inveslmenls, either htdlvlduaiii or In (he 
Acccunl as a whole, will attain such ntlurnt. 

Canservstlva • Account prlnarUy seeks currem income and. McondarUyt moderate capllal apprecbtlen. The uie ol margin 
wiP be permuted, but only lo tacllilate the uie ol certah cam management services. Investor b willing to atsurie lew to 
moderate «bk eommensurate wHh Investor's eipecled relurnt and underslanda that there Is no guaranioe that Ihe invest-
manls, etthar Individually or In the Account as a whotn wia altatn sucn returns. 

I Oblectlvets). Pravlde cumplele i a. bidlcete whether the account 11 Braherage Account Inves 
Dlscrsttanarv or Non-Blecnttoaanft and chooio one Invaatmont obloettvo lor tach aeceunt N you chooio "B danced" er 
"Capltel Appnclaliett." yeu nuy alio check "Spaculatlv^ II epprapiiate." 

ttfiiuit S E Cn/Zj 

VUldi S Cjryjz 
Acncnllilunc • lie.Olia. 

n"«rtU6 
• casttd Araitddim Q Bataeid fl CemifvUly* 

• UlPlM. 
• fteo-Plie. 

AccaiMNuiw • UAHie. 
• itoirOtic. 

• CaaltelAaaissMiM •Balmstd •eaiwrvaUvt 

Account Name • UADhc. 
• NnrOlsG. n SPSoMlve Uweilmenti 

Fees and eiacutlan charges may he negotiated and you may pay more cr ins lees, ceniffllsslens. commission eqidi alents. mark ups 
and mark-downs than similar cUenli. OlllerenI Inveslmante may fesidl In dHlarent cods, and (iS&Cft and Its parser net may bo com-
pansaied mora or less depending on the bweslmenl straiegy. lees and conimlsaleni. 
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bidlvlduals, MuM-Parties and Custodianships 
Brokerage Account InforiTIttion 

comwuio 

MARGIN ACCOUNT AND USTCD OPTION TRANSACTIONS 
Please dicck Uw baia MDW to inHlcMe Put veu dMmilw AMHy to «M matqln (U, Itw ablUy IB torrow ownty I w CSfiCo. ID 
liiirclnseseci.rlles or to make oilier puKtuies) end the ability loenqage In ihlad option iniuBctloni. 

ViNwaiitloOcsbtolel lend/brloenasysla UQUI tflHSlCllOllS SVCh W ShOft SrtlllQi 
Please refer lo the encloied Mar^ Risb Disciosiire SlalefflenL the Margbi Supptemenl and Uie Inlofest Chsrpes and 
Maiqin Roqiilfeineals in the Account AQteemenls lor impoitant bifoimalion. iFOr non-ERiSA and nonHRA clleats only.) 
tt tMs abWly does not apply to ail orokeraiis accatinit you are openino witii this paekaoe, please inoicaia (scepUons eeiaw: 

IS^ Vaa*«ntteboabfelocnei«elnilstedeplte I In cannecllaa Willi your bfokanen oecoynlsi. 
Please refer to Me enclosed Opilens Disdsiure Document fer hnpertanl Inlermatlon. P you want to engagir In uncovered 
option transactlont. you represent that you nave an annual Incoma over $100000 end a net worth over SiSCuOOa 
II IMs aWOty does not apply to aP brekoiaqe accounts you are openlrq wllh INt paekagft please indlcaio CKeptions below; 

OVER THE COUNTER (OTC) OPTION TRANSACTIONS 
Please check the hoc be'ow to Indicate liut you want the abblty lo enqaqe in OK option transactions. 

• Yau want to be aUe to enoBoe to OK opUanlfansaeltons In connection wtth your biakaraoeaccaunls. 
Vou rcpreseni thai you we an Accredited tnveslor as dolined on page C^. Please refer lo llu OTC Options Aqreements bi 
uie Account Agfeements pxkage 
II this ability deaa nat apply tn aO brokerage accounts you are opening with this package, pieese fed caie esceptfens below: 

FX TRADING 
Pteese choce me bos below to indicate Mat you want Moabiilly to engage In fX trading lor hedging or spocuuiion. 

icttani laMar than spol transicllons) n Vbo want to baMh to enter Into nnlgaeaehangc and FX OpUeai 
fer Me purpose of hedging. PIcasa refer to Iho FX Tradfeg SuwIamenI In the Account Agreemenls pachagi. 
II M's ablKlv doon Ml apply to aU hreherage accounis yeu are opening with M s peckage, please Indcata oceapllens helpw: 

• Vbu wont lobe cue to eater Into Fbrdgn behangeend FX Optini Tkaiuaclfeni (ellm Man epol tiaaeictlanD 
lor the pwpesa of fpecalatfen and he^g. Vbu represent Hut you fully understand tiw risks ol currency specuialion and 
are able lo bear those risks end yeu lurllwr rapresem that yeu IUM a net worth el al least SSO mHaon. Please refer to 
the FX Trading Snpplameol :n Me Account Agreemenls paehage. 
il MIS abfllly decs not apply to aO brokerage accounis you era opanlng wHh IMs paMcge; ptease ind'cale occoplfons below; 

SIGNATURE 

I agiM to the Broketage Account fefeimalleib tachMIng Me Brakerage AcefluntlnueslinenllMlaclhreSi t 
llclad opIiMi tnMBCtlaiw, ir efeclMt OK option tmnsnetiDns. IT efeeted and FX tiedtiig, B elbcfeai 

SfeMhne- KeUcrNvmhert 

t«d 

i%u 

<» 
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individuals. Muiti-Parties and Custodianships 

Account Terms and Conditions 
and Signature Page 

PItau md liMM ttAni and condUtont, tha Cutlomar Atnuntnl and all athar i .. AlaaiiwIanianUialhi 
Agraamanti pmldad ta you earalully bafam aceapUiia Itwaa a«raamantt. Sactlani 8 and * apply only II you bava 
aMartd Into lha Imwalmant Advisory SopplimanL 

L VM sra OaviMl ay llw taioH of HW MdMtd 
CuMonor «a<o«Miii and M albar appUetMt 
fvapltmmU la Hit AcNonI AammMilt pro* 
vIMtovw. VtauoiSiniiilaroolhilatongiiimt 
INI Now AHowil Msnnaliaa you hM* tccoived 
(he Coiloiatr agracHBnl Old any elhcr MPtGS-
Ka lupsScoitiill In the /UxoiM AaiMowiilt a<o-
mMd M lav. Vni ispnsMi Dial |ou have itaa 
and Midanleod mt leimi sat tarfh ta ad ef lliair 
malcdih. ana ISO avM that Ihay aie tawpe-
nlid by letarance as pan el isur aaiceaienl 
•Hh CSSCo. and thdysu and your Ausanl aia 
aoona by UNHi Tha detkiad taf ms In ikb NM 
AtctainilnlannBiisn have Ihe sana meaning as 
inlho OBitomn haiceniefa andelhei lesCuble 
liispleniantsinilie aeninl Sofstmenli PTMU' 
cdloysa 

LTransKtlsas Mar to itadng. Vbamuil 
dcposllaiilOclrniSMidlllcsar nharfteprny M 
ysiB Aosiini an Of balara the appBnUr sMIe-
mml dalA P yau tan to dtpoM sallidmi 
SKunllH or OtrartaBperlyhito your Accounl 
pnor la IhalltaasGKCtamiyi among othsr 
Ihhgs, caiwel your wdK Nqirdaia your poill'on 
and ctaae year AaeaunL «M agree Ihal yoa ariO 
ha solely itipoMMeier anOoiBtadenmny 
CSSCalOr any eapeMss wMssei liKoaaatUen 
tMh am bamatltanmadrnloftodeeaiillng 
limds tayoei hrgaimt InehaPiig ftawnebh 
alioiiieyb lees and ents el aanacUea Vbiir awn-
tv 10 »scuta liasiacttons aaihoirt sidlkJaM 
loeurtllis Of Oirar tosoaily In your haaiM van 
oe allha sole diiaelloa ol CSKa In ad nwcls. 
Including the sita banwncy ornature 01 such 
Irsnudlon. 

3. iloo of eicclnnlc Sonrtaii. VOuagiorlhal d 
you use Ihe Ckc-ioale Sarvkei maoa avaUabia by 
CSSCo. yoo arin dio read ihe dbatouws end do-
alelmeis made eiaiiiMr ale lee CKcirenie 
Services SuMdenent. end yoo agtee ta he Bound 
eyliMfe dMaswei jnddUcuimsa. Vta/I cartlln-
uad ine el Ihe Uiclisnlc ScnIcDs wfl be deemed 
en acccplaace al iho aScdoSHes and dhdaimets, 
aa amanded Irani MM to tiiM. «au agree la ee 
baund by any agreetpanls eatilad tais eleclraid-
cady ithiBugh dieto er olher asbenil by any pet-
leninirg ynut tar any ol yew Uietsi Uwr ID 
and taainNTdM. tou lurtimr agree Ibal yau «W 
nel eonlBil the Hgany btadhg nahini vabsily or 
ealsfccaHRy si any ol Itwac egnemoMa, leg-
endi or dbclMutM aoicd ontne lact Ihal toe 
Mtiu Here atceeiedeieuignicaliK Any wth 
ogreemwH aad ftMaestlaro enlited MID ettc-
ireideaily nrU be deemed 10 be In samnar a»d to 
nave been •signed' byyounnhlheaemrelhtl 
as e menuii slgnaliae land any tlMisnie Kcatd 
ol such egieenients eideied bm onSiie adb be 
deemed lobf in mUmD-

4. Cartineeltao el InlenBaUeOi Vbu rapitseni 
W CSSCo MM en Mtennllan prevMie by yeu 
AS« and M toe lilure. tachMMg to inb Hon 
AcaunI bitaroiattoo b escarele and cnmpMe 

Old tcMes to you, and you agree la nallly 
eSSCe. hnmedlalciy ol any changes to litis tator-
(Miisn. ibu luriher agreo to wpaiy any tatorna-
lien reeionably reqiitiled at any How ay CSSCo 

3. Crealt and •tcagrsund Chach. fleuaiiliwirr 
CSSCc. and any ageni or service prwUei to uio 
vcfOy end cantaffi any ol the iniareieltan Ihal 
you prnine. InduCIn 

>. Canuel Intamieltao In- erase Ta 
end Pfliiclpaf TMniasltan I Cbr fuufCIIISA 
acBsiiiiUsidybtbHdnci ateiendeSnellees 
al cress TMnudlens end PUnctaUTieniecltans la 
IhaomnladeRssigedaed nlheNeal 

tag your ciedll standi and husbicH CMiducI 
Innd ynuiiiisineni d you «va In a cenununlly 

. piopeilystalfKondloibaieaiitucbtatannatlen 
•Hh GSSCo.'s iBCCtiisis. asilgno egenb ana 
lemlCDpnvidais todclemilfle yowrcSgUniy far 
an Accoam or any tedure or alheiwho Ifpn* 
your •iRtcoiegutsI, wo HH tafotm you whelhff 
ne have oWabiM a onumn tepnil absiil yni 
end. II SOL«« WW provide you wlM toe itame and 
eddress d Ihe repsiltap agency Ihal laiidsbed 
nerepeiL 

0. RSALTIMC aUDTCS. BV CHECUTINa THIS 
ACRCOiniKvouAeReci 

A. THAT VDU HAVE RCAto AND ACMC 
TO BE BOUND BV. THE HASCAO SUB-
SCRIBCn ABREEHEin; THE AaRCEMEHT 
rOB HARim DATA OtSPUV SCBVICCSi 
ANO THE OPnONS PRICE RSPORTNC 
AUTHOBITV MRHUCMT fOB DlAlrllP 
MABHR OCTA SERVICE AND THE EURO
PEAN ANb MIAN ACREDiEHTE iTME 
•EXCHANGE ACBIEMEHTSI, PROVIBED 
WITH THE ACCeUHT ACRCEMBHTtl 
aTyurcsscaisNisrAHAooiTaPTia 
nCHANCtSANDB mr AHTHCIIBEOTD 
AODTOOR DtUnCPROM THECWHANCE 
AGREEManBANDISNarAUmaBBEDID 
MOgOYAHV PROWSUBICrTHEEECHAHCC 
ACRCEMiliniAliO 

C THAT NO PRCViSiON HAS BEEN 
ADDED TO OR DELETED PROH THE 
CSCHANCE ABREEMCHTB AND THAT NO 
HDOmCATIBNS HAVE BEEN lURE TO 
THEM. TOO AND ANY PERSON CEECin^ 
IHO ON VOim BEHALP WARRANT THAT 
VDU ARE lEOALiy ABU TO UNDERTAKE 
THE OBUCATWHS SET PORTH ilL ANO 
THE SICNATCRV IS OUV AUTHORIZCO 
TO BWO TOU TO, THE CECHAHCB 
ACRCEMENTSv 

tafarmailgn as rfcscrited ta •Mbn 1 al Ihe 
inveitmsiH Advbanr Supph.nenL Teu muR iiaiay 
us n ymimfer to nave iiicr neilcei sent to Ihe 
tai number cpedfleahlheiiawacaewd 
tataiBMlbn. 

ftWRhreeeicilsniluMt endnrtum 
Optlene traneitUent eiscaltd hf OSSCa. pur 
event to the hmalmMUjdvtoery 
auppleaieat,|leppllcahb tarnemCRISA 
nceoiMlcefilylctoudlreel uidnulfiefinGSSCa 
tahs cepacUy as tavcsleimi aduttar endnai as 
fUurrs Cemnilsilen Hercha H fTC as your 
egenl, tavetlnieni aduber r tdvher'i end aner-
nay m lid 10 crecue Ihe a SCO rUures and 
Cpliens AcceunI Agicemenf (Ihe TUhiies 
Agiecmem') on your eehan and putcfiare and sen 
lldvref cantraclf md/br cot ens on IWutes con 
iradsuatod an conbeanirtali, boards at bade. 
naUowlSRwHIaseahingeoaHcmeOwliBdnosys-
leins<Hri«lbecbanieeliMi<eculian(KiiiiBer 
olhgriiHilfbtanlkclKiiio'Cdtfacmnaaaf 
cbnce wiw ine lenns anoccndHieiis as Ml totih 
toiheAcceaai AgieemcidnHb CSSCo acltag as 
iiiercMenaveoagiMloM bound by ihtleim 
ol Ihc Acceunt AgreeiMnI t • the nme eileni as 
n you had aiaculed sudi Ag-ecmanl doeeilp. 

Tbu furinw ecarenly acsm •teogo and agree 
Itial yoo hew recelvvd. tea I ana undiiilsoA 
and raiained a eepy Ol the IIM Dlicioiure far 
rutuiei ana OpHeas. ahlch InctodM Urn dbcto-
wros icoubad by Oomiaadi V niliHO Tiadfag 
CemiidssienrCFTC-) Rubi SDta IIT and 
waiDtck a dbdusurc PVIH ant Ip crTC Rule 
LMieilo ana auihomaiteiv pumuM u crtc 
RtoasUSUMDandlSSJIbiSn. 

WUb iMPacS to cemnnaH an t 
ewoHleObyl 

E WHh rtipecl to toe Maaegid Aetoenl 
Stiabgtoni B MPPCIMO yea eppaliit the 
MveitMWl minegefW rManaaef-i aimed In 
the New Aeeminl Ifdemtatlan ei your igtiil 
andallamey-ln-bcl wllbdlKreltaMrv euilierf-
ly to mamge Ihe eHMS In toe relaveM sinlegY 
in eccetdence yriln lha larms al Ihe Invesliiieni 
Mweger AgrHnurd. By signana bebta yau 
aclnairfedeB having iccdimd acepy ol CSSCa.T 
Managed Accoual Sbelegbs Bbdaiim 
BradHira «r Schedule M ta CSSCdT Ibm AOV 
or a ivBslilalei and Ihe Ibrm ADE Pan n nt a 
subtlSuieitarineuaiiiger. 

Itotht 
hwoilment AdyliarY Sepyttmifti, If appUer 
Ui, pvninnl to m aiamp daa (rem Hit 
Ceminodir nrturei TMrg CanuMuIn 
rVPTCT in oamipeltaa allh icceuato ay 
•WMUfM RglMt Paneai'. IMi 1000001 aae-
ument le net rewbed to ho end hei aal been, 
fltad «Hb the CTTCTbt cne daei net paii 
upon Ibe moflto al perttd wttng ta a trddliig 
pngiem or opao the adeq leoy ar icBBraey el 
fommnilHT Imdtag iPvlia' dbdasuie. 

y toe cnc bee rial fevHved ar 
appmvM Hie trading preg am a 
dre ar any btadnro ar ta aunt dacumenl, 

Tbu are ewaic Uiat toe AdiP as end Oplbns 
Aecewd AgrecPWM iiMch V w have Brecled Ihe 
Advliar to itgn on ynur beni d grunu CSSGa> eel-
Ing if FGU a numbw eftlghx and taipoies ear-
tain eblliwlloM en yeisnllhieipeettoRseeceuni 
vrtto toe ICM. tor eiifflBlO t CSCo b eratdede 
Anna end oilgM IP scion egebisL any Bllb 
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Individuals. Multi-Parties and Custodianships 

Account Terms and Conditions 
and SlgnaturTL^e 

OOMTMUD 

«m{ii«aiilBill»li3<ln«Kli«llKndfiSSCa.liaf 
ItorigMlollvitiateyBurAHHiinllnUKcwnlgl 
• MMIflrlfOlsei.deeraMCll<i«id(rilonnec-
nivv lor Itt pmlKiioii. In atfMinv ym M 
icmotaRaUtloi ovonoiinttemdlaCSUa 
tKtafls«oiv*>ll talHicH onrf avcamiBii-
ilem R 0 rnrit oi the M«ber) IQAQ «» 
VQUTMIigA 

ertcr oCSSCatooroMPMCli 
iMqeoBloowlMeNaniiiavtelBuetaUw 
Homioitottalo orlnmltrioinoliiw csnnip 
lion nmdml Mli«4«lng poilUQMlnUM willMr 
owrtUiotCSCCo^tccemn bmlNPtlSSSCa. R 
your imslaicnl odvhR «a tf i»'«nne vliMtor w 
BqwOrio ortniMer iBiiedtini yaiwmoimo 
««M R flStca.-y tanlniplcy n yao «IM b iMti 
your «iM MgPiWni pboM MulM yow liSKa 
roorowtuiln Ir mriltaQ ol yOVORlfiulioa Mbj 
KWioirfBdgo llial m MtuiBiieo can to gkioft »i! 
anytodgbypaBontwIltoiranitondilyau 
MM 4lnn wto mmuctioa. 

yDUIWOEKTANDANO AGHlE IMAT VdU ARE 
«U1W)IB»»T-C ASmsn AlOIHCfCUTO 
IRAWACT rUnWES rOR SrtOULAIIVC ANDAM 
DURAnCM AND RISK MANAOfMINT PURPOSES 
AT VOUR RHK tto m fe wnwtal tobaov 
Uwliuimctanol IM ASMR hi owiyniwci 
(sncMtfiiscnyMidonacMiiiiucaRiMtoon 
FCMonywr toroH andtoyow namoOM 
lUsna AmuMjT. Whoa! hntaUano! ine 
laiaoolnSiltortM btoteby authoilNauRaiiiiia 
imlnicliaaafltaAdiAMEloanxiibaiiPckur 
tiamaclloni b Oonlncls «lAKriKlnl to Ito 
AOnbR u inmier menct HCuritlM 01 oihir 
piopRirloorh«»IMaiun»«ccoiMtaiidls 
mato orifceM daOifonr ol m cmniadlliN 

untailynt the ConliaitoiiatoOto (to Atolwi on 
tohaM of UiouoMiiitiiadL 80 on Moatfano n no 
name el you to the Hfflo iMORH w Ito laiM 
oilsnl and «Mii Un HOW tarn OMI oliici 01 yoH 
coiM act tfKcOvi rorliMrmoiK Ito rou OKS 
upon ttolmtoRtionolttoAdibef and UMnnf 
ciRioaolaacpaiabMiUMSlHiipagioMnani 
•nrdi oiay tonatidtotolto Atobcr on ynor 
taMH accapl hoai otlwr MakviCMOrMs eu-
ciiiatf to iiKli botcn on Ito onto ofito ASiilwr 
lotoctooivio ItofEMiardtawm orca^r 
tn«.TMlauihorbaliMfllltoDtocoalil>ulll«aM 
iiuOmnatohbOhiuaoaolfKliMiSltercito 
tettlfl al talllen nahee ef ysur nmcallBn larrr 
oflpmMMEhonanEllialiadiinaeailoAiMS 
not to tUaclbo wHh f aiptcl (a open poiWoM 01 
ouMonOmoortobluPoilliptftoltoAdrtortuI 
Ml yet eoaitnlh IHIMD ban to IM taaaM ol 
Ite KM and Ui tunoBoio; OO ma to URNig 
upon yoit your lutcMionaiid legairapifacrtp-
ihasindtollibiaddllantoCMdlnaowayMU 
or rciDlcW any'lyMi wMcb Ito RW moy taM 
under any oUm ogMoiaGnl or agitonwMa 
tonwrnyouandltoriM. 

WHMul pibinolce to yow. you aultafbo 
euco. ORORI pmonnt and onylioorbitoi 
RIlRt ondhMIIOM dl Ito Adelici tor Ito 
Auounl talatplteiilterditool vaurliaMac 
IIORi Ivoughaoyacfoinl of soclipenanHli 
laci to lis being nauiMd at piavailiW pricn oi 
aecardaRcanillitMCRniimdKvEMnaiigaArt . 
and Ito luin and legidaltoni praRRiltaied 
ttoie«nd« aM applleabb ouhangc "tov 

ta CoRWeia ar iniaiML csscoi aria ai OR 
loHitoE bwailowRl banm, ineaicn pitotM 
taicilmtfll RMnagK Itoanca'. adeboA iMirtal 
nateis IradK priRW bwtaa bndK agent ato 
piRicipal and ton ciMr craet or liidtoci liiler> 

o«n to thr global lind tomoia, <«mii(» nnr 
modllK aqiiRy andotoor invbolt and far Eomaa-
Rtos In nidclt your AeeouR may •RMiL dSSOoL 
aod Ha Mitoanet InclodtK taniluiem piota-
itonaii auignad to your Aecoufli, tnay tola puii-
Boia In iccumbt or bte adioinlar iMir own 
aenunit wMdi annd wRi uaiinoiu ioyout 
Anount. eSKaiMyacI atbnobei orcoimtH-
pailp to any iramacUon ciKDlod tor your 
accouRl and oara coaimlH otoi commlnlon 
cniilMlenti.fflatb-iipiand aaibdowniH 
detoOad In Secltan 20 at Ito Cuilanwr. 
Agiaomanl 00411 youofo Mablngodidiaiv 
aomlaKftiiecllottSalilN Ineeiimenl AMmy 
SappleiaaM, NbUcl to opptaMo law Vou 
atanowiadgcltofUaand tonlDcltolliiianrt 
Autowiaf dORilbed benitaad In SeclWi If of 
Ito Otoaawr Agreameol a< il you 810 obla'-n-
tag advboiy lereicoA in So :llob O ol Ito 
inwilownl Adeiiory SunMROM ana in SSSCOi'a 
Aim AOK Sctodido H or 0 tor diKIOHiro docH-
oiontt Itol tombcM provdod to you. 
MoliMIMlandlng web oclii-d or ptaanllai eon-
arts ol inleioil you bOM catofmliMd to entai 
WO IMl AgfCbffiem lelUl 6 iSCm 

tLOyalgelngUbiivwognitotobaunStotoa 
MiimaitocandmoaaarihillowAocanal 
tatomiolboobdlto AceoartAtooeiiwidobioeB' 
ndtoyaiiaiidtoiedailRdlEtM 

dfpleR 

12.AI • orbHfOtonctaufotocon-
tonwd to stcHou 4S (pop'91 or too coatomr 

SieilATUllE 

Print tumi 

Clu^ 

For 0S6C& UM OMV; 
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Customer Agreement 
C=3 Primary Account Agreements 

I. Cenml Atra uThisAgraemenlsaU 
forth lha respective rights and obPgaVons el 
GSSCOL and you b connection wRh each ol your 
Accounts (Ineluding Accounts held Individually, 
jointly or In other combination). H bidudes the 
application that you submit to open your Account 
and the smplemanls. statements, disclosures and 
other agreements (each a "Suppiemenn lor the 
products and services lor which you have applied. 
GSKCe. reserves the right to amend or terminate 
eny such Supplement at any b'ma Both the 
Agreement and any applicable Supplement are 
subject to CSSCah approval Tbia Agreement 
supareadas any prevleua agroamants made by 
you Indlvlduofly with OSfiCa. idatlng to any ol 
your Aeeounle, and If your Account Is hold 
jclntiv or In other cemblnatleni, it cupereadca 
any previa us agreamania made by the samo 
partlec ta this Agraamant with OSACo. relating 
toyour Aceeuntc,tatliaaxtanltnocub|oet -
matter la ccvercd In this Agnament. GSfiCa 
reserves the right to decline any request to opon 
-an Account or for any Matures. 
"6SSCo,'"'we,""us" or "our- means Goldman, 
Sachs & Co., its preseni and future alfiiiates, and 
their respecUvB partners, officers, directors, 
emptoyoes end agents. -You" or "your" means 
each natural person or legal entity indicated in 
the tlDe to the Account and on whose behatf this 
Agroement has been signed. Wur ttccount" 
refers to each brokerage or other account. Includ
ing managed and custody accounts, at GSGCa 
that is estabSsInd to your name alone, or In your 
name together with others, or In which you have 
a beneficial fnterasL The basic braksnga account 
provided by CSSCo. wHl be a "cash account," in 
Which you make all purchases for cash satlle-
ment. without cradIL You mOY apply and be 
apprevad lor a "margin account" in which you 
wli be able to make purchases Mlh lunds bor 
rowed. or to recelvo aedil, Irom CSSCo, using 
eligtole seeuritfes or cash as couateraf lor the 
credit. You may be charged execution charges 
(Such as commissions, commission equivatenlA 
mark-ups, mark-downs and spreads) as described 
in thb Agreemant. A "comiMssfen" ganeraly b 
the amount charged by a broker lor purchasing 
or selling securitias or other investments as an 
agent lor the customec A "cenunlss'ion eguiva-
lent' Is an omount charged by a dealer tor pur
chasing or soiling securities or other investments 
In certain "riskless princlpar iransacUnns (La. a 
transaction In which a dealer, alter having 
received an order to buy from a customer, pur
chases the security from anolhar person to offset 
a contemporaneous sale to such customar or, 
after having received an order to sell Irom a cus
tomar, seib the security to another parson to on
set a ODHtemporaneous purchase Irom such cus
tomer). A "mark-up" la the price charged to a cus
tomar, loss the pravalilng market price and a 
"mark-down" b the prevailing market prlce,tess 
the amount a dealer pays to purdiase the securi
ty (rem the customer. The "spread" lor a security 
is the dlHerence balwoan the currant purchase or 
bid price Ohal is. the price someone b'wiWng to 
pay) and toe curreht ask or oiler price (that b 
ihe price d whicli someone b wlHIng to sell). The 
dVlorenee or spread narrows or widens In 
response to the supply and demand levels ol Ihe 
security, bi addition, to conneeUon with your 

Account, you and persons designated by you may 
be provided with access to "Electronic Services," 
wMdi include the various websites owned and 
oporaled by GSKO, through wlilch It oilers bro-
karaqe, financial and other sarvicas, as wail as 
any other eiectnmic means by which GSSCa may 
now or in ihe future oiler these services. 

2. Ownership. Ybu agree that ail Securitias and 
Other Property (as defined below) held for your 
Account win he held to the manner indicaled In 
the title to the Accounl with aii thetegal and 
equitable rights and subject to d the obligations 
and conditions thai Ihe lorm ol ownership impos
es. YOU represent that no one has an interest to 
your Account except you or others that you have 
previousiy disclosed to GSSCo. as part of your 
apflicatlon to open an Account orto a manner 
aulhortsed by CSSCo. "Securities and Olhar 
Properly" Includes cash, stocks, bonds, mutual 
lunds, money market lundSi financial instru-
merrts, opltons and related contracb and any 
other securities, whefiier cartilicatedor uncertlli-
caled, securdios enliltements, securWes 
accounts, commodity contracts, commodity 
accounts, orrraney contracts, map contracts and 
ralaled options Ihareon, and any other assets and 
the proceeds thereoT. This definition Includes 
Securities and 01 her Properly cirrreAtiy or in Ihe 
future held, carried or maintained by GSSCo. or 
in Ihe possession or coidroi of CSSCo, In or lor 
eny el your current or future accounts. Indudlng 
any aaouni in wldch you may have an Interest, 
and regardless ol tha purpose lor which (he secu
rities and other property ore so held, carried, 
maintained, possessed orccnlrclled, 

3. Servlcai Provided by CSSCo, You agree that 
CSSCo. may provide cerlaln brokorage or other 
services to you with or through lb aHlllates. Dus 
Agraameni h anteredlnio by GSSCo. on Its own 
behail and on bahall ol its alllSatas. All rights 
and llfflltatioru ol liability and obligaUons ol 
GSSCo. in IMS Agreement are lor Ihe benalit ol 
CSSCo. and each ol its preseni and future eflili-
eles. VOu further agree and krevecably appoint 
GSSCo. with lull power as yaur true and lawful 
aitorneyrinrlact, to Ihe erderd permiHed by law, 
lor the purpose ol carrying out lha provblons ol 
•his Agreement. 

4. Credit and Background Check. Vbu avthorixe 
GSSCo. and any agaM or service provider to use, 
verily and confirm any ol Ihe intormatlon that 
yuu provide, including conducting background 
checks, obtaining reports concerning your credit 
standing and business conducl (end your 
spouso's if you Ive In a convnunily properly 
slate) and to share ail such Mormallen with their 
successors, assigns, agents and servtca providers 
to determine your eilgtolllly lor an Accounl or 
any lealure or otherwiso. Upon your wrilten 
requosl wc will Morm you whether we have 
obtained credit reports, and, II so, wc will provide 
you with the name and address of Ihe reporting 
agency that furnished Ihe reports. Vbu agreo 
that, without aolllylngyou, we may request a 
new credit report to connection with any review, 
exienslon, or renewal ol the Account. You further 
agree lhal GUCo. may submll tolormaUon 
rellecUng on your credit record to a credit report
ing agency. You aulhcrtee GSSCO. to share with 
its allillates credit bureau inlornMtlan,inlonna-

llon contained In your appffcatton to opan an 
Accounl, information obtalnod irom third parttos 
and sfanllar informaUan, or to use such hlorma-
iton consbtent wIthOSSCak privacy poifcy. 

& MonHorInq ol Account Ybu acknowledge and 
agree that GSSCa may monitor and record your 
use of Ihe Electronic Services and any communi
cations between GSSCo. and you that occur over 
the htemat or any other nelworii. Including tele-
plwna, cable and wireless nelworks, and that A 
may use toe resulting Information (or Mernal 
purposes or as may be reqidred by applicable (aw. 
Any such monitoring and recordino wM be carried 
Old conslslent wllh CSGCo.b prtvacy polcy. 
6. TIrensferof Assets into Account You agree 
that all Securitias and Other Property deposited 
in your Account Wili be In Good Oeliverabie Form, 
unless GSSCo otherwise approves. "Good 
DeEverablo Form" means (resly transferable, 
prcperiy endorsed, registered and lolly nego
tiable. Vbu agree to give GSSCo. (Imaty totorma-
tfon relating to any restridians on the b-ansler ol 
any Securities and Other Property, including 
reslrlctlons on the transler ol reslrfctad or con-
Ird securities relerred to to Section 7. itou lur-
ther agree to timely satisfy all legal transfer 
requirements and to lurnish all necessary docu
ments belcre and after securilies are banslerred. 
7. Rula t44 or t4S(d) RaaWoted er Control 
Secnrittaa. Prior to plaeing an order tor toe sale 
or transler of any securities subject to Rule 144 
or MStd) under the Securities Act of 1933 or any 
other rule relating to retlticled or control securi
lies or securilies that may oiherwisa be conbac-
tuaiiy restricted, you agree that you will advlsa 
GS&Co. of Iho status ol Ihe securltiai and lurnish 
GS&Co. with the nocessary documents (Including 
optotons ol legal counsel 11 GSSCo. so requests) 
or any other roquirod waivers or eonsenb to sat
isfy l^al transler requirements. These securities 
may not be sold or Iransferiad unlll they satisfy 
legal transler requlremonls. Even 11 tha necessary 
documents are furnished in a limely mannec 
there may be delays In the processing ol these 
securilies. which may result in delays to the deC'V 
ery ol securities and Ihe credlilng ol cash to your 
Accounl Vbu are responsible lor any delays, 
expanses and losses associated wito compk'ence 
or laiiura to compiv with aii ol the requirements 
and rules relating to contractually restricted, 
restricted or control securities. 

& WHbdrawols. GS&Co. reserves the right to 
require that you mane requests for any wllh-
drawals Irom your Account In writing. 

9. Order execution. Ybu agree that, subject to 
the terms ol an ordet Ihe meihod of execution of 
that order Is to the sole discretion ol GS&Ca 
GS&Co. may retoci and pre-revlew your orders or 
take any other action (which may delay Ihe exe-
odion ol the order) lor any roason, Including 
market conditions, system outages, capacity Ami-
tations. pending proprietary or customer orders 
in lha same socurltK ragutalory rcslrlcUans and 
restrictions imposed by GS&Co. with respect to 
transactions to the particular security 

Vbu authorize CSSCo. lo submit your orders joint
ly wilh orders lor other customers, and you 
acknowledge that the average price for execu
tions rosuIUng from bunched orders wlil be 
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